	[image: ]  1.  TKS & TKS(L)
[image: ][image: ]
D.  If Stunned, this AFV may not regain CE status, may not fire a weapon, and is Recalled as per D5.341.
	1.  TKS & TKS(L)
† Each time a Mechanical Reliability DR (D2.51) is made, an 11 indicates the AFV has stalled.  Owner must make immediately make another DR, which equals the # of Delay MP (including one MP to stop, but excluding the MP to start) that the AFV has used in the unsuccessful attempt to move.  I can again attempt to move, but must expend another MP to start--& must undergo another Reliability DR.  An AFV that stalls is subject to DFF but not as a moving target unless it had already entered a new hex during the same MPh.  Should a Stall result in more Delay MP being expended than the AFV has available, the AFV is considered to have expended its entire MP allotment in Delay.
	[image: ]  2.  Vickers Edw(b) & Ejw(b)
[image: ]	[image: ]
See page 131 for further information.
A.  The following apply regardless of the counter's nationality, except as stated otherwise:
"(a)", "(b)", "(f)", or "(i)" in the piece name stands for "American", "British", "French", or "Italian respectively, for ESB (D2.5), Hammada Immobilization (F3.31), Sand Bog (F7.31), etc. purposes
K.  Both MA and MG are B11.  This is signified by "B11" in red on the counter.

	2.  Vickers Edw(b) & Ejw(b)
[image: ]
	[image: ]  3.  7TPdw & 7TPjw
[image: ][image: ]
See page 131 for further information.
K.  Both MA and MG are B11.  This is signified by "B11" in red on the counter.
	3.  7TPdw & 7TPjw
[image: ]

	[image: ]  4.  H35(f)
[image: ]
A.  The following apply regardless of the counter's nationality, except as stated otherwise:
"(a)", "(b)", "(f)", or "(i)" in the piece name stands for "American", "British", "French", or "Italian respectively, for ESB (D2.5), Hammada Immobilization (F3.31), Sand Bog (F7.31), etc. purposes

	4.  H35(f)
E.  The CMG may be repositioned as a 2-FP AAMG.  This can be done only by placing an AA counter on the AFV at the end of any friendly fire phase (not MPh) in which its Inherent crew is CE and could have fired the MG (even if malfunctioned) but did not.  This AAMG may fire only at a target that lies within the TCA.  The AAMG may be repositioned as the CMG by using these same principals to remove the AA counter.
F.  The CE DRM is +1 vs. Indirect Fire as well as vs. Direct Fire that emanates from within the turret's rear facing.


	[image: ]  5.  Peugeot 1918(f)
[image: ]
A.  The following apply regardless of the counter's nationality, except as stated otherwise:
"(a)", "(b)", "(f)", or "(i)" in the piece name stands for "American", "British", "French", or "Italian respectively, for ESB (D2.5), Hammada Immobilization (F3.31), Sand Bog (F7.31), etc. purposes
D.  If Stunned, this AFV may not regain CE status, may not fire a weapon, and is Recalled as per D5.341.

	5.  Peugeot 1918(f)
G.  Reverse Motion costs this vehicle four times its normal hex-entry costs.
	[image: ]  6. wz.29 "Ursus"
[image: ]
† The wz.29 "Ursus" has two MG:  one rear BMG that fires through the vehicles rear VCA and a rear CMG that fires through the vehicle's left rear TCA.
	6. wz.29 "Ursus"
[image: ]

	[image: ]  7.  wz.34-I & wz.34-II
[image: ][image: ]

	[image: ]  8.  De Dion-Bouton wz.24(f)
[image: ]
See page H132 for further information
A.  The following apply regardless of the counter's nationality, except as stated otherwise:
"(a)", "(b)", "(f)", or "(i)" in the piece name stands for "American", "British", "French", or "Italian respectively, for ESB (D2.5), Hammada Immobilization (F3.31), Sand Bog (F7.31), etc. purposes
Q.  The MA may use neither BFF nor Motion Fire.
AA.  The MA has AA capability
	8.  De Dion-Bouton wz.24(f)
[image: ]

	[image: ]  9.  Polski-Fiat 621L SPAA
[image: ]
See page H132 for further information
A.  The following apply regardless of the counter's nationality, except as stated otherwise:
"(a)", "(b)", "(f)", or "(i)" in the piece name stands for "American", "British", "French", or "Italian respectively, for ESB (D2.5), Hammada Immobilization (F3.31), Sand Bog (F7.31), etc. purposes
Q.  The MA may use neither BFF nor Motion Fire.
AA.  The MA has AA capability
	9.  Polski-Fiat 621L SPAA
[image: ]
	[image: ]  10. 302T
[image: ]
† the 302T carries a 5FP AAMG which can be Removed (D6.631) as a 6FP dm HMG
† The MA may use neither BFF nor Motion Fire within the vehicles VCA.

	[image: ]  11.  C2P
[image: ]
	[image: ]  12.  C4P
[image: ]

	[image: ]  13.  Horse-Drawn "Taczanka"
[image: ]
†  The "Taczanka" is treated as Horse-Drawn Transport (D12) for all purposes except as noted.
†  The "Taczanka" starts each scenerio with a 2-2-8 crew as a Passenger that applies to the vehicles PP capacity (D6.1)
†  The AAMG of a  "Taczanka" is fired by a Good Order Passenger, but neither BFF nor Motion Fire is allowed.  Furthermore, the AAMG of a "Taczanka" may not fire at a target that lies within the VCA.  The AAMG may never be Scrounged/Removed.  Captured use penalties apply to the use by opposing forces of the AAMG but not to the "Taczanka" itself.

	13.  Horse-Drawn "Taczanka"
†  D12.2 TRANSPORT: A "Taczanka" may never combine with another Wagon.
†  D12.3 TARGET STATUS:  a "Taczanka" is treated as a Small Target (D1.73).
Q.  The MA may use neither BFF nor Motion Fire.

	[image: ]  14. VCL Mk VI/c47(b)
[image: ]
† The Inherent crew receives a +2 DRM only to Direct Fire traced through the VCA.
† This vehicle may not change VCA and fire its MA during the same phase (MPh & DFPh are counted as one phase) of any player turn.
A.  The following apply regardless of the counter's nationality, except as stated otherwise:
"(a)", "(b)", "(f)", or "(i)" in the piece name stands for "American", "British", "French", or "Italian respectively, for ESB (D2.5), Hammada Immobilization (F3.31), Sand Bog (F7.31), etc. purposes
	14. VCL Mk VI/c47(b)
Q.  The MA may use neither BFF nor Motion Fire.

	[image: ]  15. T-13 Type II(b) "Dragon"
[image: ]
†  This vehicle's TCA coincides with its rear VCA, and its turret aspect (C3.9) is treated as unarmored to Direct Fire through its Rear TCA.  If the TCA is different than the Rear VCA, however, the vehicle's turret aspect is treated as unarmored to Direct Fire emanating from outside the TCA, it receives a +1 CE DRM to Indirect Fire, and its CS# becomes 2.
† This vehicle must be stopped to change TCA and may not change TCA in the same phase (MPh & DFPh being counted as one phase) of any player turn it fires its MA/CMG and/or moves.
See example on page H135
	15. T-13 Type II(b) "Dragon"
A.  The following apply regardless of the counter's nationality, except as stated otherwise:
"(a)", "(b)", "(f)", or "(i)" in the piece name stands for "American", "British", "French", or "Italian respectively, for ESB (D2.5), Hammada Immobilization (F3.31), Sand Bog (F7.31), etc. purposes
	[image: ]  16. T-13 Type III(b)
[image: ]
A.  The following apply regardless of the counter's nationality, except as stated otherwise:
"(a)", "(b)", "(f)", or "(i)" in the piece name stands for "American", "British", "French", or "Italian respectively, for ESB (D2.5), Hammada Immobilization (F3.31), Sand Bog (F7.31), etc. purposes

	[image: ]  17. a.b./Mi T-15(b)
[image: ]
A.  The following apply regardless of the counter's nationality, except as stated otherwise:
"(a)", "(b)", "(f)", or "(i)" in the piece name stands for "American", "British", "French", or "Italian respectively, for ESB (D2.5), Hammada Immobilization (F3.31), Sand Bog (F7.31), etc. purposes
	[image: ]  18. ACG1(f)
[image: ]
†  The ACG1's CMG is treated as 12.7mm machine gun, with normal range of 16 hexes.
A.  The following apply regardless of the counter's nationality, except as stated otherwise:
"(a)", "(b)", "(f)", or "(i)" in the piece name stands for "American", "British", "French", or "Italian respectively, for ESB (D2.5), Hammada Immobilization (F3.31), Sand Bog (F7.31), etc. purposes.
	[image: ]  19. T-32
[image: ]
D.  If Stunned, this AFV may not regain CE status, may not fire a weapon, and is Recalled as per D5.341.

	[image: ]  20. M3A1(a) & M3A3(a)
[image: ][image: ]
A.  The following apply regardless of the counter's nationality, except as stated otherwise:
"(a)", "(b)", "(f)", or "(i)" in the piece name stands for "American", "British", "French", or "Italian respectively, for ESB (D2.5), Hammada Immobilization (F3.31), Sand Bog (F7.31), etc. purposes
B. 37mm Canister has 12FP
C. May be equipped with Gyrostabilizer as per D11.
L. The MA uses Black TH#s (unless captured).
	[image: ]  21. M3A3(a) PaK 40
[image: ]
A.  The following apply regardless of the counter's nationality, except as stated otherwise:
"(a)", "(b)", "(f)", or "(i)" in the piece name stands for "American", "British", "French", or "Italian respectively, for ESB (D2.5), Hammada Immobilization (F3.31), Sand Bog (F7.31), etc. purposes.
H.  This vehicles is always CE--it may never BU.
L. The MA uses Black TH#s (unless captured).
	[image: ]  22. M3A3(a) FlaK38
[image: ]
†  A TK DR on a turret hit is resolved as if against an unarmored target.
A.  The following apply regardless of the counter's nationality, except as stated otherwise:
"(a)", "(b)", "(f)", or "(i)" in the piece name stands for "American", "British", "French", or "Italian respectively, for ESB (D2.5), Hammada Immobilization (F3.31), Sand Bog (F7.31), etc. purposes.
H.  This vehicles is always CE--it may never BU.
L. The MA uses Black TH#s (unless captured).
AA.  The MA has AA capability

	[image: ]  23.  AEC II(b)
[image: ]
A.  The following apply regardless of the counter's nationality, except as stated otherwise:
"(a)", "(b)", "(f)", or "(i)" in the piece name stands for "American", "British", "French", or "Italian respectively, for ESB (D2.5), Hammada
G.  Reverse Motion costs this vehicle four times its normal hex-entry costs.
L. The MA uses Black TH#s (unless captured).
	[image: ]  24.  Nimbus 20mm TD Motorcycle
[image: ]
See pages H136 & H137 for further information.
	[image: ]  25.  VCL M1936(b)
[image: ]
†  The Target Size TH DRM is +3 (and also HD) if in a Water Obstacle or a deep/flooded stream.
A.  The following apply regardless of the counter's nationality, except as stated otherwise:
"(a)", "(b)", "(f)", or "(i)" in the piece name stands for "American", "British", "French", or "Italian respectively, for ESB (D2.5), Hammada Immobilization (F3.31), Sand Bog (F7.31), etc. purposes.
V.  This vehicle was used by the Dutch only in Java in 2/42-3/42 [EXC: if the "V" appears, it was used only in the Netherlands in 5/40].

	[image: ]  26.  CTLS-4(a)
[image: ]
†  The CMG MA may not fire at a target that lies within the port side VCA.  In addition, the TCA may not move "across" that area when traversing.
A.  The following apply regardless of the counter's nationality, except as stated otherwise:
"(a)", "(b)", "(f)", or "(i)" in the piece name stands for "American", "British", "French", or "Italian respectively, for ESB (D2.5), Hammada Immobilization (F3.31), Sand Bog (F7.31), etc. purposes.
V.  This vehicle was used by the Dutch only in Java in 2/42-3/42
	26.  CTLS-4(a)
[image: ]
	[image: ]  27.  Pantserwagen M.36 & M.38
[image: ][image: ]
V.  This vehicle was used by the Dutch only in the Netherlands in 5/40.

	[image: ]  28.  Pantserwagen M.39 "Lynx"
[image: ]
V.  This vehicle was used by the Dutch only in the Netherlands in 5/40.
	[image: ]  29.  Marmon-Herrington III(b) Armored Car
[image: ]
†  Make two TK DR on the MG column when using the AP TK Table; only one DR (firer's choice) is used.
†  Reverse Movement costs this vehicle three times its normal hex entry costs.

	29.  Marmon-Herrington III(b) Armored Car
A.  The following apply regardless of the counter's nationality, except as stated otherwise:
"(a)", "(b)", "(f)", or "(i)" in the piece name stands for "American", "British", "French", or "Italian respectively, for ESB (D2.5), Hammada Immobilization (F3.31), Sand Bog (F7.31), etc. purposes.
V.  This vehicle was used by the Dutch only in Java in 2/42-3/42

	[image: ]  30.  Jeep(a)
[image: ][image: ]
†  The vehicle if armed, has an Inherent crew and thus has a CS# instead of a cs# (D5.6)
†  Vehicle has Low Ground Pressure (D1.41)--signified by is identity letter being inside a square.  Moreover, when this vehicle is bogged, only (only) CX squad (even a Prisoner--but not a Guard) on foot expending 4 MF in the vehicles location (and declared to be assisting unbogging) thereby allows the owning player to subtract 2 (1 per crew/HS) from the colored dr of its immediately subsequent unbogging DR
	31.  L5/30(i), L3/35(i), L6/40(i), & M13/40(i)
[image: ][image: ]
[image: ][image: ]
	31.  L5/30(i), L3/35(i), L6/40(i), & M13/40(i)
†  The L5/35 may make two TK DR on the MG column when using the AP TK Table; only one DR (firer's choice) is used.
†  The L5/35 & M13/40 4FP BMG may be Scrounged as one or two LMG (as per D10.5); however, it is considered one MG for malfunction, repair, and disablement purposes
A.  The following apply regardless of the counter's nationality, except as stated otherwise:
"(a)", "(b)", "(f)", or "(i)" in the piece name stands for "American", "British", "French", or "Italian respectively, for ESB (D2.5), Hammada Immobilization (F3.31), Sand Bog (F7.31), etc. purposes.
D.  L3/35 only:  If Stunned, this AFV may not regain CE status, may not fire a weapon, and is Recalled as per D5.341.

	32.  FT-17M(f) & FT-17C(f)
[image: ][image: ]
†  Minimum road-MP cost is one MP; i.e. no FT-17 may use the 1/2 road rate even if CE.
A.  The following apply regardless of the counter's nationality, except as stated otherwise:
"(a)", "(b)", "(f)", or "(i)" in the piece name stands for "American", "British", "French", or "Italian respectively, for ESB (D2.5), Hammada Immobilization (F3.31), Sand Bog (F7.31), etc. purposes.
F.  The CE DRM is +1 vs. Indirect Fire, as well as Direct Fire that emanates from within the turret's rear Target Facing.
	33.  R-35(f)
[image: ]
A.  The following apply regardless of the counter's nationality, except as stated otherwise:
"(a)", "(b)", "(f)", or "(i)" in the piece name stands for "American", "British", "French", or "Italian respectively, for ESB (D2.5), Hammada Immobilization (F3.31), Sand Bog (F7.31), etc. purposes.

	33.  R-35(f)
E.  The CMG may be repositioned as a 2-FP AAMG.  This can be done only by placing an AA counter on the AFV at the end of any friendly fire phase (not MPh) in which its Inherent crew is CE and could have fired the MG (even if malfunctioned) but did not.  This AAMG may fire only at a target that lies within the TCA.  The AAMG may be repositioned as the CMG by using these same principals to remove the AA counter.
F.  The CE DRM is +1 vs. Indirect Fire, as well as Direct Fire that emanates from within the turret's rear Target Facing.

	34.  M3A1 Scout Car(a)
[image: ]
† Each M3A1 Scout Car starts the scenario with an inherent crew, and also either a 1-2-7 Partisan HS or 2-3-7 Allied Minor HS (depending on the nationality) as a Passenger that applies to the vehicle's PP capacity (D6.1).   This vehicle can retain unpossessed SW aboard it (D6.4), and its crew/Passenger may Remove either of its MG, and Mounted Fire Penalties (D6.1) do not apply to its Passenger(s).  The MA is removed as a dm .50-cal HMG and the other MG is removed as a dm MMG; use (without penalty) the American .50-cal HMG & MMG [EXC: the Partisans can opt to use Russian .50-cal HMG/British-colored MMG(a)].

	34.  M3A1 Scout Car(a)
†  See page H139 for further information.
A.  The following apply regardless of the counter's nationality, except as stated otherwise:
"(a)", "(b)", "(f)", or "(i)" in the piece name stands for "American", "British", "French", or "Italian respectively, for ESB (D2.5), Hammada Immobilization (F3.31), Sand Bog (F7.31), etc. purposes.
V.  For Allied Minors only:  This vehicle was used by the Dutch only in Java in 2/42-3/42
	35.  C-K P17(f) & P19(f)
[image: ][image: ]
†   Prior to setup, and in addition to the normal A2.9 10% Deployment allowance, the French player may freely Deploy a # of squads  sufficient to provide one Passenger HS for each C-K P19, and two Passenger HS for each Lorraine 38L in the OB--excluding each such vehicle that will set up towing a Gun/carrying a crew.  The HS may recombine (and the resulting squads may Deploy) as if there were Carrier HS and these vehicles were Carriers (D6.82).

	35.  C-K P17(f) & P19(f)
A.  The following apply regardless of the counter's nationality, except as stated otherwise:
"(a)", "(b)", "(f)", or "(i)" in the piece name stands for "American", "British", "French", or "Italian respectively, for ESB (D2.5), Hammada Immobilization (F3.31), Sand Bog (F7.31), etc. purposes.
	36.  VCL Utility B(b)
[image: ]
A.  The following apply regardless of the counter's nationality, except as stated otherwise:
"(a)", "(b)", "(f)", or "(i)" in the piece name stands for "American", "British", "French", or "Italian respectively, for ESB (D2.5), Hammada Immobilization (F3.31), Sand Bog (F7.31), etc. purposes.
H.  This vehicles is always CE--it may never BU.
V.  This vehicle was used by the Dutch only in Java in 2/42-3/42
	37.  Light Truck, Medium Truck, & Heavy Truck
[image: ][image: ][image: ]

	[image: ]  3.  75mm wz. 02/26
[image: ]
	[image: ]  4.  100mm wz. 14/19
[image: ]
A.  This weapon may be Animal Packed (G10).
	[image: ]  5.  75mm wz. 97/25
[image: ]

	[image: ]  7.  M76A
[image: ]
A.  This weapon may be Animal Packed (G10).
D.  This weapon may not be dismantled.

	[image: ]  8. 7.6cm FRC
[image: ]
† This Gun may also use Indirect Fire, for which purpose its range is 16-55 hexes and its ROF is 3 (if using Direct Fire it has not such minimum range and its ROF is 1).  All rules applicable to firing a MTR (including the possibility of Spotted Fire and of retaining Multiple ROF) apply to this Gun for Indirect Fire purposes.  However, it may not use both Direct and Indirect Fire in the same phase (treating the MPh & DFPh as one).  Switching from Direct to Indirect Fire or vice-versa does not cause loss of Acquisition.
A.  This weapon may be Animal Packed (G10).
	[image: ]  9.  C47 FRC M32 "quatre-sept"
[image: ]


	[image: ]  10.  C75 TR
[image: ]

	[image: ]  11.  C75 GP
[image: ]

	[image: ]  12.  Ob 105 GP
[image: ]


	[image: ]  13.  C120 M31
[image: ]

	[image: ]  14.  M27 FRC
[image: ]

	[image: ]  16.  Vari 85/24 M
[image: ]

	[image: ]  17.  OR 105/19
[image: ]

	[image: ]  18.  3.7cm Bofors AA
[image: ]

	[image: ]  19.  Machinecannon 20mm M-35
[image: ]
†  The B# for the M-35 is decreased by one to B10 when using IFE.  The M-35 is repaired on a dr of 1 or 2 and removed on a dr of 6.
T.  As signified by "Tow NA" on the counter, this Gun cannot be towed.  However, it may be carried on a vehicle in the same manner as a 76-107 MTR (C10).  It is (un)loaded using the normal (un)hooking procedures [EXC:  The vehicle need not have a T#: ignore its T# if one is present], and reduces that vehicle's PP capacity by 8PP while loaded.  Section C10 applies otherwise unchanged.

	[image: ]  20.  3.7cm Infantry Gun
[image: ]

	[image: ]  21.  80mm M28 and M33
[image: ]

	[image: ]  22.  100mm M14/19
[image: ]


	23.  Brandt Medium Mortar
[image: ]
A.  This weapon may be Animal Packed (G10).
B.  Belgium
Gr.  Greece
N.  Norway
P.  Poland
Y.  Yugoslavia
	24.  37mm Bofors AT
[image: ]
A.  This weapon may be Animal Packed (G10).
De.  Denmark
P.  Poland
	25.  3.7cm PanzerabwehrKanone 36
[image: ]
Gr.  Greece
Ne.  Netherlands
Y.  Yugoslavia

	26.  Bohler M35 47mm
[image: ]
A.  This weapon may be Animal Packed (G10).
Gr.  Greece
Ne.  Netherlands
Y.  Yugoslavia
	27.  65mm wz.06
[image: ]
A.  This weapon may be Animal Packed (G10).
Gr.  Greece
P.  Poland
Y.  Yugoslavia
	28.  75mm wz. 97
[image: ]
A.  This weapon may be Animal Packed (G10).
Gr.  Greece
N.  Norway
P.  Poland

	29.  Bofors M34
[image: ]
A.  This weapon may be Animal Packed (G10).
B.  Belgium
Gr.  Greece
Ne.  Netherlands
N.  Norway
	30.  75M 19S
[image: ]
A.  This weapon may be Animal Packed (G10).
Gr.  Greece
P.  Poland
Y.  Yugoslavia
	31.  C105 L 13S
[image: ]
B.  Belgium
P.  Poland
Y.  Yugoslavia

	32.  120mm wz. 09/31
[image: ]
N.  Norway
P.  Poland

	33.  155mm Model 17 S
[image: ]
B.  Belgium
Gr.  Greece
P.  Poland
Y.  Yugoslavia
	34.  Mitrailleuse de 13.2 CAJ mle 30
[image: ]
† Make 2 TK DRs when using the 12.7 column of the AP TK Table; only one DR (Firer's choice) is used.  Maximum range for TH purposes is 16 hexes.
T.  As signified by "Tow NA" on the counter, this Gun cannot be towed.  However, it may be carried on a vehicle in the same manner as a 76-107 MTR (C10).  It is (un)loaded using the normal (un)hooking procedures [EXC:  The vehicle need not have a T#: ignore its T# if one is present], and reduces that vehicle's PP capacity by 8PP while loaded.  Section C10 applies otherwise unchanged

	34.  Mitrailleuse de 13.2 CAJ mle 30
B.  Belgium
Gr.  Greece
Y.  Yugoslavia
	35.  20mm Oerlikon
[image: ]
C.  When using Limbered Fire, the Barrel length modification (C4.1) on the counter's LF side is used for To Hit purposes but the AP Basic To Kill # is still determined using the Caliber Size and Length printed on the unlimbered side.
Gr.  Greece
Ne.  Netherlands
Y.  Yugoslavia
	36.  40mm Bofors AA
[image: ]
C.  When using Limbered Fire, the Barrel length modification (C4.1) on the counter's LF side is used for To Hit purposes but the AP Basic To Kill # is still determined using the Caliber Size and Length printed on the unlimbered side.
B.  Belgium
N.  Norway
Ne.  Netherlands
P.  Poland
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